BCI Summary of Interviews
With Ravnsborg
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Speed {S¥ = 60MPH
Deceleration facter (fy = 0.882
Distance (1) = 136.05fset
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Equation 7

During an interview with BCl, Mr. Ravnsborg indicated he did not immediately apply the brakes untii
after he struck the unknown object that was later found to be Mr. Boever. Mr. Ravnsborg stated that
when he did apply the vehicle brakes, he “tapped” them.

The distance from the AOI to Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle stopping point is approximately 614 feet. The
impact speed of Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle is approximately 65MPH. The calculated deceleration factor of
Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle is 0.229.

Speed (8) = 65SMPH
Distance (D) = 614feet
Deceleration factor (f) = 0.229
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Eguation 8

The calculated deceleration factor indicates Mr. Ravnsborg is using less than 1/3 of the available braking
force of 0.882.

BCT Interviews with Mr. Ravnshorg

BCI Agents Rummel and Arenz conducted two separate interviews with Mr. Ravnsborg, one on 09/14/20
and the other on 09/30/20. The information provided in this report is limited to events prior to and during
the crash events, see Agents Rummel and Arenz reports for full information.

09/14720 Interview

Mr. Ravasborg provided the following information during the interview —
¢ Traveling from Redfield, SD to Pierre, SD when the crash occurred.
e There were no stops after leaving Redfield, SD.
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His route was US 212 from Redfield; SD 45 to Miller; US 14 from Miller.

Has two cell phones. A perscnal phone and a work phone.

Slowed down as he drove through Highmore.

Thought about stopping for gas in Highmore but the stations looked closed.

Started to accelerate when he sees the 65MPH sign.

Sees the 48 miles to Pierre sign.

Stated “WHAM and slaps his hands indicating the crash occurs.

Never saw anything until impact.

Did not have time to swerve, decelerate or accelerate.

Debris was on the shoulder.

Stated “1 believe I was on the road the whole time”.

Went through town. Slowed down. Saw 65SMPH sign looking off to right. Started to speed up.
Consented to skid testing his vehicle.

No exactly sure about how fast he was going, 4MPH over the speed limit at the most.

Stated “As the best that I recollect, [ am driving along in the drive lane and WHAM and then |
react and I might have hit the brake then. | did work myself to the shoulder then. [ don’t know if I
slammed on the brakes at all. It was more the Jolt of it then trying to just control the car to get it
off to the shoulder”.

¢ Indicates he was not distracted and thought the radio was off but not 100% sure.

e Stated “I know I was on the road”.

The pieces were on the shoulder and were still there the next morning.
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09/30/20 Interview

Mr. Ravnsborg provided the following information during the interview -
¢ Lot of sleep the night before.
Flew into Rapid City from Louisiana the night before,
Attended a Lincoln Day Dinner in Rapid City on September 11™,
Slept in until 9:30-10:30AM on the day of the crash.
Was asked to speak at an event in Sisseton also on the 12 but declined due to the distance.
Approximately 3PM left Pierre traveling to Redfield.
Approximately 9PM -915PM left Roosters Bar and Grill in Redfield.
Did not stop after leaving Redfield.
Describes leaving Redfield as “snake” through town.
Had a phone conversation with his father after leaving Redfield, no other calls.
Listening to Twins game and Lakers playing Houston.
Shut off radio close to Highmore.
Looked to right and left in Highmore.
Car pointing east in south gas station.
North gas station had 3 to 4 High School kids.
Going to shut radio off and think about big cases that are coming up.
Traditionally put it in cruise but had not locked it in yet.
Had not “engaged” cruise.
Generally set cruise around 65-67MPH.
Never travel more than 4 over anymore,
Had not turned high beams back on after Highmore.
Stated “I did not punch the brakes. My military training, you don’t punch. I've always been
taught you don’t punch the brakes because then you could spin. So, [ tapped the brakes 2 or 4
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times, trying to control the vehicle and you know shake as you get to the side of the road and
brought it to control as best I could. To safely get to the side of the road.”
¢ Did not move any debris from the roadway.
e Wreckage was still there the next day.
¢ No vision problems,
s Does not wear glasses.
= Was using his phone up to the time of the crash.
®  One phone on the seat slammed into the the wheel well.
® Set phone down around Highmore on console.
¢ Pumping the brakes.
Does not recall crossing the rumble strips.
e Uses the resume sometimes

Speed Determinations

Mr. Ravasborg departs Roosters Bar and Grill at approximately 2121 hours. At 2224 hours Mr.
Ravnsborg calls 911. I determined the distance from the crash site to the intersection of US Hwy 14 and
SD Hwy 45 was 22.49 miles, Google maps measures the distance as 22.55 miles. Mr. Ravnsborg’s
vehicle drives past the FarmTech camera in Miller at 22:04:22 hours. The 911 call is received at 22:24-08
hours. These times show M. Ravnsborg traveled from the west edge of Miller, SD on US Hwy 14 to the
crash location, struck Mr. Boever and cailed 911 in 19 minutes and 46 seconds,

Work Phone times vs Exemplar testing

During the exemplar test of driving from Redfield, SD to Highmore, SD we determined the total driving
time to be 1 hour, 8 minutes and 59 seconds. The driving time for Mr. Ravnsborg, based on his work
cellphone, was 1 hour, 3 minutes and 3 seconds. The total distance to drive from Redfield, SD to the
crash location is approximately 71.7miles.

The average speed of Mr. Ravnsborg’s trip was 68MPH.

Distance (D) = 378,576 et
Time (1) = 3,783seconds
Velocity (V) =100,07FPS
Speed (S) = 68MPH

378,576
73,783

V = 100.07FPS

P
T 1486

_ 100.07
T 1.468

§ = 68.26MPH
Lquation 9
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Speed (8) = 60MPH
Deceleration factor () =0.882
Distauce (D) = 136.05feet

b &0°
T 30-0.882

3600
T 06.46

D = 136.05feet
Egquation 7

During an interview with BCI, Mr. Ravasborg indicated he did not immediately apply the brakes until
after he struck the unknown object that was later found to be Mr. Boever. Mr. Ravasborg stated that
when he did apply the vehicle brakes, he “tapped” them.

The distance from the AOI to Mr. Ravasborg’s vehicle stopping point is approximately 614 feet. The
impact speed of Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle is approximately 65MPH. The calculated deceleration factor of
Mr. Ravasborg’s vehicle is 0.229.

Speed (S) = 65MPH
Distance (D} = 614feet
Deceleration factor {f} = 0.229

_ 657
f_30°614
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f= 18420

f=0229

Equation 8

The calculated deceleration factor indicates Mr. Ravnsborg is using less than 1/3 of the available braking
force of 0.882.

BCI interviews with Mr. Ravashorg

BCI Agents Rummel and Arenz conducted two separate interviews with Mr. Ravnsborg, one on 09/14/20
and the other on 09/30/20. The information provided in this report is limited to events prior to and during
the crash events, see Agents Rummel and Arenz reports for full information.

§9/14720 Interview

Mr. Ravnsborg provided the following information during the interview —
e Traveling from Redfield, SD to Pierre, SD when the crash occurred.
¢ There were no stops after leaving Redfield, SD.
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His route was US 212 from Redfield; SD 45 to Miller; US 14 from Miller.

Has two cell phones. A personal phone and a work phone.

Slowed down as he drove through Highmore.

Thought about stopping for gas in Highmore but the stations looked closed.

Started to accelerate when he sees the 65MPH sign.

Sees the 48 miles to Pierre sign.

Stated “WHAM?” and slaps his hands indicating the crash occurs.

Never saw anything until impact.

Did not have time to swerve, decelerate or accelerate.

Debris was on the shoulder.

Stated “l believe I was on the road the whole time”.

Went through town. Slowed down. Saw 65SMPH sign looking off to right. Started to speed up.
Consented to skid testing his vehicle.

No exactly sure about how fast he was going, 4MPH over the speed limit at the most.

Stated “As the best that I recollect, I am driving along in the drive lane and WHAM and then I
react and I might have hit the brake then. | did work myself to the shoulder then. I don’t know if 1
slammed on the brakes at all. It was more the jolt of it then trying to just control the car to get it
off to the shoulder™.

Indicates he was not distracted and thought the radio was off but not [00% sure.

e Stated “I know I was on the road”.

The pieces were on the shoulder and were still there the next morning.
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§9/30/20 Interview

Mr, Ravnsborg provided the following information during the interview -
e Lot of sleep the night before,
Flew into Rapid City from Louisiana the night before.
Attended a Lincoln Day Dinner in Rapid City on September 11%,
Slept in until 9:30-10:30AM on the day of the crash.
Was asked to speak at an event in Sisseton also on the 12" but declined due to the distance.
Approximately 3PM left Pierre traveling to Redfield.
Approximately 9PM -915PM left Roosters Bar and Grill in Redfield.
Did not stop after leaving Redfield.
Describes leaving Redfield as “snake” through town.
Had a phone conversation with his father after leaving Redfield, no other calls.
Listening to Twins game and Lakers playing Houston.
Shut off radio close to Highmore.
Looked to right and left in Highmore.
Car pointing east in south gas station.
North gas station had 3 to 4 High School kids.
Going to shut radio off and think about big cases that are coming up.
Traditionally put it in cruise but had not locked it in yet.
Had not “engaged” cruise.
Generally set cruise around 65-67MPH.
Never travel more than 4 over anymore.
Had not turned high bearns back on after Highmore.
- Stated “I did not punch the brakes. My military training, you don’t punch. I’ve always been
taught you don’t punch the brakes because then you could spin. So, I tapped the brakes 3 or 4

2 & @ ® € & & » © v 2 O O

® 2 e o

& @ ¢ 9

32
Ravnsborg Documents 84



times, trying to control the vehicle and you know shake as you get to the side of the road and
brought it to control as best I could. To safely get to the side of the road.”

¢ Did not move any debris from the roadway.

e Wreckage was still there the next day.

s No vision problems.

Does not wear glasses.

Was using his phone up to the time of the crash.

One phone on the seat slammed into the the wheel well.

Set phone down around Highmore on console.

Pumping the brakes.

Does not recall crossing the rumble strips.

Uses the resume sometimes
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Speed Determinations

Mr. Ravnsborg departs Roosters Bar and Grill at approximately 2121 hours. At 2224 hours Mr.
Ravnsborg calls 911. | determined the distance from the crash site to the intersection of US Hwy 14 and
SD Hwy 45 was 22.49 miles. Google maps measures the distance as 22.55 miles. Mr. Ravnsborg’s
vehicle drives past the FarmTech camera in Miller at 22:04:22 hours. The 911 call is received at 22:24:08
hours. These times show Mr. Ravnsborg traveled from the west edge of Miller, SD on US Hwy 14 to the
crash location, struck Mr. Boever and called 911 in 19 minutes and 46 seconds.

Work Phone times vs Exemplar testing

During the exemplar test of driving from Redfield, SD to Highmore, SD we determined the total driving
time o be 1 hour, 8 minutes and 59 seconds. The driving time for Mr. Ravnsborg, based on his work
cellphone, was 1 hour, 3 minutes and 3 seconds. The total distance to drive from Redfield, SD to the
crash location is approximately 71.7miles.

The average speed of Mr. Ravnsborg’s trip was 68MPH,

Distance (D) = 378,576feset
Time (1) = 3,783seconds
Velocity (V) =100.07FPS
Speed (S) = 68MPH

R R

378,576
T 73,783

V = 100.07FPS

6= v
T 1.466
100,07
T 1.466
S = 68.26MFPH
Equation 9
33

Ravnsborg Documents 85



The average speed of the exemplar trip was 62MPH.

Distance {D) = 378,576feet
Time (£) = 4,139 seconds
Velocity (V) = 91 46FPS
Speed (8) = 62MPH

[ Rl

378576
T 4,139

V =5146FPS

14

1.466

9146
T 1466

5 = 62.38MPH
Equation 10

Mr. Ravnsborg averages 6MPH faster than a vehicle traveling the posted speed limits.

Highmore to Miller

Based on the specified times and locations it can be determined Mr. Ravnsborg was traveling an average
speed of 68.32 MPH. The calculated speed is an average speed and does taken the slower speed limit on
the west side of Miller, SD and through Highmore, SD into account. This speed also does not take any
delays for Mr. Ravnsborg to call 911 after stopping his vehicle.

Time {$)= 19 minutes 46 seconds (1, 186seconds)
Distance (D) = 22.5 miles (118,800feet)

Aserage Velocity (V) = 100.16FPS

Averags spead (3) = 68.32MPIT

Vo=

3R]

118,800
T 1186

V = IDO.IGFPS

10016
1466

§ = 68.32MPH
Equation 11

During the skid testing of Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle [ determined his speedometer varied by 2-5MPH over
the actual speed. Based on this information Mr. Ravnsborg would have believed his vehicle was traveling
70-73MPH.
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Mr. Ravnsboreg’s work cellnhone

BCI downloaded Mr. Ravnsborg’s work phone. On October 26%, 1 received an Excel document from BCI
titled AG Timeline. I found various times and activity within the document. Some of the information can
be found below. The full AG Timeline report is attached to this case.

2119-2121 Approximate departure time from Lincoln Day Dinner.

21:23:01 Calls his father and speaks to him for over 23 minutes. — Mr. Ravnsborg later states the
call to his father was dropped while traveling on SD Hwy 45 between US Hwy 212 and
Miller, SD.

21:48:00 Attempts to call his father at 2148 hours but the cali is unanswered.

21:58:57 Calls his father and speaks to him for 2 minutes and 18 seconds.

22:17:25 Accesses Yahoo Mail

22:20:49 Accesses Dakota Free Press

22:21:13 Accesses Real Clear Politics

22:21:45 Accesses Riding the Dragon (Article regarding Joe Biden)

22:22:48 Phone locks and screen off

22:23:56 Phone screen turns back on

22:24:06 Phone is unlocked

22:24:22 911 call is made

On November 3, 2020 [ received additional information from BCI regarding Mr. Ravnsborg’s work
phone. The information was contained within an Excel document titled “Apple iOS Full File

system 2020-11-02 Report”. 1 also received a Google Earth mapping file titled “locations”. The
“locations™ file is a .kml file. When the “locations™ file is opened it automatically populated various
locations into Google Earth. These locations are identified in the Google Earth map as yeliow pins. The
coordinates can be referenced to the “Apple iOS Full File system_2020-11-02_Report” spreadsheet page
titled “Timeline”. [ determined the criginal document “AG Timeline” could be referenced to other tabs
throughout the Excel workbook. I found the information regarding the access of Yahoo, DakotaFrecPress
and RealClearPolitics was not reported with GPS Coordinates. However, 1 did find Yahoo,
DakotaFreePress and RealClearPolitics were immediately preceded and followed by location updates
which did indicate GPS coordinates. I mapped the following coordinates associated with Yahoo,
DakotaFreePress and RealClearPolitics as follows:

Yahoo — prior (44.528048, -09.382250)
Yahoo — after (44.528044, -99.382657)
The calculated distance is 0.028 miles or 105.6 feet

Dakota Free Press — prior (44.52803 1, -99.385086)
Dakota Free Press — after (44.528031, -99.385494)
The calculated distance is 0.020 miles or 103.6 feet

RealClearPolitics — prior {44.527989, -99.394887)
RealClearPolitics - after (44.527987, -99.395302)
The calculated distance is 0.020 miles or 105.6 feet

RealClearPolitics Riding the Dragon — prior (44.527909, -99.408143)
RealClearPolitics Riding the Dragon — after (44.527906, -99.408538)
The calculated distance is 0.019 miles or 100.32 feet
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When the previous coordinates were mapped within Google Earth they were approximately 105 feet
apart. These distances were determined by calculating the coordinate distances at

https:/fwww fee.govimedia/radio/distance-and-azimuths. All other coordinate calculations were
conducted in the same manner. The distances found at the FCC website are displayed in miles. The
distances in feet are calculated by multiplying the miles by 5,280 feet.

Information found in the Excel document “Apple i0S Full File system 2020-11-02_Report” indicates the
website RealClearPolitics is accessed at 10:21:13 an article found on RealClearPolitics titled “Riding the
Dragon” is accessed at 10:21:45. The coordinates that precede these times are:

RealClearPolitics — prior (44.527989, -99.394887)

RealClearPolitics Riding the Dragon — prior (44.527909, -99.408143)
The distances between the two locations is 0.653 miles or 3,447.84 feet.
The time between the two points is 32 seconds.

The speed Mr. Ravnsborg would travel between the two points is 73.4MPH.

Bistanee = 3,447 .84 feet
Time (t) = 32 seconds
Velocity {V) = 107.7
Speed (8} =73.4MPH

]

Vo=

3,447.84
Ve
32

¥ =1077

10774
1466

S =73.4MPH

Equation 12

The time of location updates is recorded in hours and minutes. | determined the last location Mr,
Ravnsborg’s phone indicated the time to be 22:20 hours was (44.528025, -99.389115). T determined the
last location Mr, Ravnsborg’s phone indicated the time to be 22:21 hours was (44.527857, -99.413801). 1
determined the distance between the two locations to be 1.216 miles or 6,420.48 feet. The speed Mr.
Ravnsborg would trave! between the two points is 72.9MPH.

Distance = £,420.48 feet
Time (t} = 60 seconds
Velogity (V} = 107
Speed (S} = 72.9MPH

v =

=i

642048
V=
&0

V=107

107
T 166
S = 72.9MPH

Equation 13
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Figure 2

The locations, times, speeds and phone information indicate Mr. Ravnsborg is traveling 72-73MPH while
reading an article on his work phone. As previously determined the error range of Mr. Ravasborg is 2-
SMPH. Mr. Ravasborg’s speedometer indicates he is traveling 74-78MPH while reading the article.

I calculated the distances between each location update from the work phone on the Google Earth map. 1
labeled each distance with a purple icon with black center. After calculating the distances, | compared the
location updates to the distances and found the location updates related to approximately 1 second at each
interval. 1 calculated the speeds between each location update by using the calculated distances and one
second intervals. I labeled each speed with a white push pin between the calculated distance intervals. |
completed this process for every location updated prior to the crash that appears to be a one second
interval.

Based on the phone GPS coordinate information [ detenmined the following:

Mr. Ravnsborg begins slowing down from 68MPH approximately 330 feet prior to the 45MPH sign.
Mr. Ravnsborg slows to approximately 46MPH as he crosses the intersection of 5D Hwy 47.

Mr. Ravnsborg begins to accelerate approximately 255 feet prior to the 65MPH sign.

Mr. Ravnsborg is traveling approximately 68MPH as the crash occurs.

As these speeds are calculated it does not take into consideration the error found in Mr. Ravnsborg’s
speedometer when skid testing. Mr. Ravasborg would think he is traveling 2-5MPH faster than the
calculated speed.

I previously determined Mr. Ravnsborg would travel an average speed of 68.32MPH to travel from
Miller, SD to Highmore, SD. The calculated speed of 68.32MPH does not take any deceleration Mr.
Ravnsborg may have done as he left Miller or entered Highmore. It also does not take into any
consideration of slower traffic or roadway hazards that may have been encountered between the two
towns. The speeds calculated from Mr. Ravnsborg’s phone are realistic and relate to the varying speed
limits. Since these speeds can be corelated the fact Mr. Ravosborg is using his celiphone to research his
email and political blogs at speeds in excess of the posted speed limits can also be concluded to. Mr.
Ravnsborg is fraveling 7-8MPH over the posted 65MPH speed zone but his speedometer indicates he is
traveling 9-13MPH over the posted speed limit while using his cellphone for various tasks.

However, based on the information downloaded from the work cellphone, it indicates that Mr. Ravasborg
stops using his cellphone and begins to slow down as he enters Highmore city limits. Mr. Ravnsborg
continues to exceed the posted speed by several miles per hour as he travels through town, but he is not
using his work cellphone.

Based on the phone information, Mr. Ravnsborg departed Rooster’s Bar and Grill at 21:21:19 hours and
calls 911 at 22:24:22 hours. From the departure time fo the 911 call time the total trip time is 1 hour 3
minutes and 3 seconds. During this time Mr. Ravnsborg’s phone is unlocked for 44 minutes and 7
seconds. Mr. Ravnsborg unlocks his work phone 10 times during his trip. During the time Mr.
Ravnsborg’s work phone is unlocked he is searching political blogs (Real Clear Politics, Dakota Free
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Press), Steve Bamett’s webpage, weather app and making phone calls. Mr. Ravnsborg is using his work
cellphone for over 69% of his trip.

Swerve Caleulations

The damage to Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle indicates Mr. Boever was struck on the right front corner of the
vehicle. The damage is within 1'% to 2 feet of the right front corner of the vehicle. Based on the
previously determined information that Mr. Ravnsborg is traveling approximately 68MPH on the
shoulder of the roadway, his headlights are limited to a distance of 90 & 35 feet on low beam and 164 +
57 feet on high beam. The speed is based on GPS coordinates which can have variation, a conservative
speed of 65MPH was used in the calculations®. It has previously been determined Mt. Ravasborg could
not react in time to brake and avoid the crash with Mr. Boever on the shoulder of the roadway (Table 7).

Based on swerve calculations, if Mr. Ravnsborg’s headlights are on high beam while traveling 65MPH,
there is a possibility he can see Mr. Boever walking and react 69 feet before impact (Table 7). The
average lateral acceleration values used to calculate lateral movement are 0.2 to 0.3, these values were
used in the calculations. Using the perception and reaction time of 1.6seconds, lateral distances of 1.5 to
2.0 feet and lateral acceleration values of 0.2 to 0.3 I calculated the turn-away distances and angles.

1.65 —

SV |

- N

Figure 26; Impact distance from righi side of car
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o = 1.5 & {lataraty [N 3.5 filateral)
§ = 65,0 i 5 = 55,8 mph P— (_iﬁ}
=
O = 65.15 fx 0 - £3.20
ro= 24L8.7A R r o= 985 82
[ 263 ¢ - - 3.22

Table 8. Turn-Away Distances and dngles

What the combination of Table 7 and Table 8 prove:

e The longest distance where an avoidance maneuver begins (Table 7) is 68.54feet, with the high-
beams on. Based on the conservative values of lateral friction (.2, speed of 65MPH and lateral
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Distance (D} = 1,694 feet
Velocity (V) = 4.11FPS
Time {t) = 6 minutes and 51 seconds

1,694

I = 412.16 seconds or & minutes and 51 seconds
Egquation 13

Biscovery of the Mr. Boever

Mr. Ravnsborg informed BCI he returned early the next morning, with Tim Bormann, to return Sheriff
Volek’s vehicle. Prior to returning the vehicle, Mr, Ravnsborg returned to the area of the crash. Mr.
Ravnsborg states he is going to search the south ditch for the deer he struck but pulls onto the north
shoulder. Mr. Ravnsborg describes a piece of bumper that was lying on the north shoulder of the road and
decides to stop there and check the north ditch first. Mr. Ravnsborg describes the thought of searching to
the west first. The day after the crash there was only one large piece of bumper on the north shoulder.
M. Ravnsborg told BCI he did not move any pieces of debris after the crash. That piece of bunper was
mapped with an outline in the forensic map. The piece of bumper is within 25 feet of Mr. Boever's body.
Mr. Ravnsborg’s statement to BCI was he exited the vehicle and began walking west, he would not have
needed to walk west from his vehicle as he was parked almost directly beside it.

Summary

On September 12, 2020, prior to the fatal crash, Mr. Boever is driving his 2003 Ford F150 westbound on
US Hwy 14, approximately 1 mile west of Highmore, SD. Mr. Boever drifts off the north edge of the
roadway, travels for a short distance in the north ditch and strikes a haybale. The impact bends the front
bumper, causing it to contact the right front tire. Mr. Boever receives a ride from the crash location from
a relative. Mr. Boever tells the relative he dropped his tobacco and was reaching for it. What appears to
be cigarette tobacco is found on the driver’s seat.

A prescription of Lorazepam 0.5mg is later found in the center console of Mr. Boever’s vehicle. The
prescription was issued on September 11, 2020 for 90 pills. Only 12 pills are found in the bottle. An
autopsy is conducted and Mr. Boever’s blood is tested for drugs, the blood test is positive for Lorazepam.
BCI is informed the level of Lorazepam in Mr. Boever’s system is not fatal but does indicate he was
likely taking more than the prescribed amount.

On September 12, Mr. Boever is seen walking north on the sidewalk along SD Hwy 47 near Mashek
Foods at 2131 hours. The video shows Mr. Boever is not stumbling or staggering as he walks on the
sidewalk. Mr. Boever is later seen walking on the north shoulder, along the north ditch of US Hwy 14
prior to the crash. One witness observes Mr. Boever wearing glasses and carrying a light thatison. One
of the witnesses talks to Mr. Beever. The witness stated Mr. Boever appeared to be intoxicated. Mr.
Boever is believed to be walking to his vehicle when the witness talks to him. Mr. Boever is wearing a
dark blue shirt, blue jeans and work boots.

41
Ravnsborg Documents 91



On September {1, 2020, Mr. Ravnsborg attends a Lincoln Day Dinner in Rapid City, SD. Mr. Ravasborg
travels from Rapid City, SD to Pierre, SD that evening. Mr. Ravnsborg informed BCI he slept in until
9:30-10:30AM on September 12%, Mr. Ravnsborg departs Pierre, SD at approximately 1500 hours and
travels to a Lincoln Day Dinner at Rooster’s Bar and Grill in Redfield, SD. Mr, Ravnsborg arrives at the
dinner at approximately 1642 hours. Based on video, receipts and witness statements Mr. Ravnsborg
does not drink any alcoholic beverages that evening. Toxicology reports later indicate Mr. Ravnshorg’s
blood is negative for drugs and alcohol. Mr. Ravnsborg’s work phone indicates he walks to his vehicle
and departs at approximately 2121 howrs. A video shows Mr. Ravnsborg depart at 2108 hours. When the
video was downloaded it was noted the time from the video differed from actual time.

Mr. Ravnsborg travels west from Redfield, SD on US Hwy 212, As Mr. Ravasborg departs Redfield, he
calls his father from his work phone. The call lasts for over 23 minutes and is dropped north of Miller,
SD, on SD Hwy 45. Mr. Ravasborg calls his father back just prior to arriving in Miller, the call lasts for
over 2 minutes. Video surveillance in Miller, SD captured Mr. Ravnsborg traveling westbound on US
Hwy 14 at 2204 howrs. Mr. Ravnsborg continues to use his work phone throughout the trip. The total
work phone usage time accounts for over 69% of his trip. Based on the work phone information, the time
from Mr. Ravnsborg departing Rooster’s Bar and Grill to the 911 call is 1 hour, 3 minutes and 3 seconds.
Exemplar testing conducted at all speed limits with no delays indicates the trip time to be 1 hours 8
minutes and 59 seconds. Mr. Ravnsborg average speed is 6MPH faster than a vehicle traveling the posted
speed limit.

As Mr. Ravnsborg approaches Highmore he is traveling 7-8MPH over the posted 65MPH speed zone but
his speedometer indicates he is traveling 9-13MPH over the posted speed limit, while using his work
cellphone for various tasks. As Mr. Ravnsborg enters Highmore his work cellphone locks and does not
turn back on until the 911 call. Based on the work cell phone information, Mr. Ravnsborg slows to
approximately 47MPH as he travels across SD Hwy 47 and begins to accelerate a short distance before
the 65MPH sign. For an unknown reason, Mr. Ravansborg’s vehicle exits the westbound driving lane,
crosses the rumble strip with the right and left-side tires then begins traveling on the north shoulder of the
roadway. Mr. Ravnsborg states his headlights are on low beam at the time of the crash. Mr, Ravnsborg’s
work cellphone indicates he is traveling 68MPH at the time of impact. Mr. Boever is walking east on the
north shoulder, approximately T foot from the grass ditch. Mr. Boever is carrying a flashlight that is
illuminated. Mr. Ravnsborg impacts Mr. Boever on the right front corner of his 2011 Ford Taurus. Mr.
Boever’s head impacts the windshield and creates a hole. As Mr. Boever’s head impacts the windshield
his glasses are broken and fall into Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle. During the impact, Mr. Boever’s right leg is
severed below the knee. Mr. Ravnsborg states he does not see Mr. Boever at any time prior to or during
the crash.

All debris from the crash was located on the north shoulder, with exception to one bolt from underneath
Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle, that bolt was approximately 2 inches from the fog line in the westbound driving
lane. The calculated trend lines place the area of impact on the shoulder, approximately 1 foot from the
ditch. Witnesses who saw Mr. Boever moments prior to the crash saw him walking on the north shoulder
along the ditch. With this information, the location of the crash is proven to be on the north shoulder of
the roadway. Mr. Ravnsborg used his work phone for at least 69% of his trip. Mr. Ravnsborg’s work
phone indicates he recently used it moments prior to the crash. At the time of this report it is unknown
what distraction took Mr. Ravasborg’s attention from driving but something distracted Mr. Ravnsborg
enough to cross the rumble strips twice (right and left side tires). After driving on the shoulder for an
unknown distance Mr. Ravnsborg admits to never seeing My, Boever on the shoulder, While traveling
65SMPH, Mr. Ravnsborg would have seen Mr, Boever for at least (.58 to 1.31 seconds if his headlights
were on low beam and Mr. Ravnsborg was undistracted. Mr. Ravnsborg would have seen Mr. Boever for
even longer if his headlights were on high beam. After the crash Mr. Ravnsborg’s uses less than half of
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the normal braking his vehicle has available and stops 614 feet past the area of impact. Mr. Ravnsborg
contacts 911 and informed them he hit something but is unsure of what it was.

If Mr. Ravnsborg is undistracted and using his high-beam headlights he is unable to brake to avoid this
crash, however he may be able to avoid Mr. Boever by swerving. I Mr. Ravnsborg has his low-beams
on, as he stated he did, he is unable to avoid the fatal crash by either braking or swerving.

After the crash Mr. Ravnsborg walks east on the north shoulder using the flashlight on his work phone.
Mr. Boever’s mostly naked body is approximately 2 feet from the shoulder. Mr. Boever’s skin color is
pale white. Mr. Boever’s flashlight is illuminated along the north shoulder. Mr. Ravnsborg states he does
not see the body or flashlight as he walks past.

Sheriff Volek arrives at the crash scene. Sheriff Volek lends Mr. Ravnsborg a vehicle, After Mr.
Ravnsborg leaves, Sheriff Volek walks through the crash scene and sees a glowing light. Sheriff Volek
believes the light is from the car, even though it is no longer attached. Sheriff Volek states he is within 5
feet of the light. Sheriff Volek states he does not see Mr. Boever’s body but agrees he had to walk
directly past it.

Mr. Ravnsborg’s vehicle has no mechanical defects.
There were no roadway or environmental concerns.

Other motorists were able to see Mr. Boever on the night of the crash. Other motorists were able to see
Agent Rummel as we conducted exemplar testing.

If Mr. Ravnsborg is not driving on the north shoulder of the road it makes no difference if Mr. Ravasborg
sees Mr. Boever or not, this crash does not accur.

Trooper John Berndt
South Dakota Highway Patrol

1. Olson, Paul L., and Michael Sivak. “Perception-Response Time to Unexpected Roadway
Hazards.” Human Factors: The Journal of the Human Factors and Ergonomics Society,
vol. 28, no. 1, 1986, pp. 91-96., do1:10.1177/001872088602800110.

2. “14. Lane Change and Turn-Away Equations.” Fundamentals of Traffic Crash
Reconstruction, by John Daily et al., Institute of Police Technology and Management,
University of North Florida, 2007, p. 476.

3. Bortolin, Roger, et al. Society of Automotive Engineers, 2012, GPS Device Comparison
Jfor Accident Reconstruction.

4. Becker, Tony L., and Tony L. Becker. Vehicle-Pedestrian-Bicycle Collision Investigation
Manual. Tostitute of Police Technology and Management, 2003.
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Summary of Interview
With Sheriff Volek
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The Hyde County Sheriff is Mike Volek. Sheriff Volek was contacted by dispatch and informed of the
crash. Sheriff Volek resides approximately 4 mile west of the crash location. The arrival time of Sheriff
Volek to the crash scene is unknown.

BCI interviewed Sheriff Volek and was given the following information.
e  Sheriff Volek arrives and discusses the crash with Mr. Ravnsborg.

¢ Sheriff Volek does not believe Mr. Ravnsborg’s actions appear strange.

e Sheriff Volek lends his personal vehicle to Mr. Ravnsborg.

¢ After Mr. Ravnsborg leaves, Sherifl Volek states he saw a light glowing.

¢  The Sheriff states it looked like a light bulb from the car.

»  The Sheriff states he did not investigate the glowing light, even though he has never seen
anything like that before.

e The Sheriff states the light was “on”.

¢ The Sheriff states the light was in the grass “right on the shoulder area™.

e  The Sheriff states the glowing light was about 3 feet from him.

o The Sheriff states he would have walked past Mr. Boever’s body to get to the flashlight.

Sheriff Volek contacts the South Dakota Division of Criminal Investigation after Mr. Ravnsborg
informed him of Mr. Boever’s body.

Weather Conditions

The National Weather Service provided the following information regarding the crash. There is no
specific information for the Highmore area but the surrounding area reported the following information:
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Station 0 Dute Tone Withmee? ak:_uinp o dew point Gtgs relative ity sownd_speid wing PEust aind guechos wid ardedi_Srecheon oreds Rl wadsit_ i weEEer_Gummary st Id
WHG Fabresnet Fsireninni Y weifhow  Mieghoor Degrass endr b Brgtute st e
Ligad CS/1%/ 630 TSS COT 337 8C.8 A8.1% £3.28 ] N 30 el
HPIR OB/12/202D X1:05 CHT 337 508 4532 &7.57 & a% 18 e
RPIR Go/Li2f2020 2010 COT 397 528 AF32 5757 & oy 38 smar
Lel DH32/2020 2118 €07 1938 554 AZ 1% T6.68 3 G A shaar
KPR 09/ IR £0T 2938 5.4 4813 LT 2 oM 5 dear
KPR UB/12{22021:45 £0T 2853 572 Lok g e85 & oN 30 chuwr
KPR /12000 2156 CDT 883 5%y BaL 85 a (134 0 chear
KPR DHIR2020 A3 LOT 2559 5534 A B3AY g an 3% clage
Kew DEFAIFINI0 2210 €5 g0 372 A%.3% B BE 2 () I3 ear
KR DGFI2F B2 2235 €O 383 512 AT S TEES [4 LR D A
KPR OS/2/R0 B MY 2553 S7.2 4384 T5.83 [} [LE] 38 e
B CRALIDIO IS COT m.ay 554 4245 0 4] amn 3 clear
KR I/ 0 235007 3393 554 4213 Th bE & oN 3D ey
€PIR G5/12/2070 £2:42 COT 15,93 516 4514 188 EX 17 s D Os
KPR CEFER( 2620 223-45 COT PLE: ) 536 4A.34 :+9:11 148 54 5ZE 10 elegr

Table |: Pierre Regional Airport - approximately 42 miles west of the crash location
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Partial Transcript of
9/30/21 Interview of
Jason Ravnsborg
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JA:  Okay.

(writing sound)
{(breathing)

AR:  So if we arrange for a polygraph, you'd be willing to take one?

JR: Yes.
AR:  Okay.
JA:  Okay.

JR:  Absolutely.

AR!  Okay we have | mean (inaudible 6:42) your guys obviously. ..
JR:  Right. Yeah.

AR:  we can't do that.

JR:  Can't. Right.

AR:  And our guys have to do theirs in North Dakota just like your guys have to do em South
Dakota cuz they're licensed there.

JA: Licensing issues.

JR: I+l guess if your ask well { let you ask first. If your asking if I'll go to North Dakota hell yes
Fifgo. You know | mean if that's what it takes or whatever. | didn't know ! didn’t want to
put words in your mouth.

AR:  No.

JR:  You know.

AR: We-we're were just actually we were just brainstorming how we could do this.

JR: Mm hmm.

AR:  An-and it like well.

JR: Right.

JA:  Mm hmm.

AR: We cud have him come to Bismarck and one of our guys there could do it.

JR: I'm willing.

AR: ..
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JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:
JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

JR:

AR:

I'm willing to do that yes.

Okay.

Whatever | can do to cooperate.

An-and like | said | mean from the beginning you've been cooperative.

Uh well again the hardest part of this | wouldn't do anything different. | didn’t know that
this was going to happen to me obviously. A-again why would a man be walking down
the road. | believe I'm on the road and wham and my life changes. | never | called
{unknown sound) 911. | got the sheriff out there (unknown sound). You know ...

Mm hmm.

I thought | was doing the right things. Obviously | didn't see everything | should've seen
probably or not but | did not see him until the next day. (unknown sound)

Well quite frankly we're going to continue on. {unknown sound).

Okay.

We're going to keep doing our stuff. Like | said. ..

| understand.

we-we got...

(inaudible 5:08)

we-we've been spending...

Alot of time.

a lot of time.

And | assume.

An-and that’s because we want to do a thorough job. We don’t want anything.

I understand. How about uh so do you have any you know obviously now we got to set
this up and such to go up there and everything, but how do you have any kind of time
estimates before you will do report? And then where does your report go?

To that county.

Good. {chuckle) | mean well.

That's {inaudible 4:46)
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Supplemental Report: Jason Ravnshorg/loseph Boever Fatal Pedestrian Crash on 09/12/2020

After the completion of skid testing, | utilized the Leica C10 ScanStation to complete a 3D forensic scan
of the vehicle. | scanned around the vehicle in six locations and later did the work to combine the scans.
TRP Berndt needed to know a measurement of how far in from the passenger side of the vehicle the
damage extended. Using the picture in Figure 2 we could see where the dirt/dust had been brushed off
the front bumper of the vehicle. 1used this information to get a measurament from the forensic map
that was completed. Figure 3 is a top-down view of the vehicle. Figure 4 is a front view of the vehicle.

Figure 2: Picture of AG Vehicle from Frant; Arrow indicating orea where dust was wiped off.

Sgt. Kevin R. Kinney, HP039 Page 3 of 11
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8/5/22, 1:35 PM
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South Dakota Supreme Court
Opinion in
State Ex Rel. Steffen v. Peterson
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607 N.W.2d 262 {2000}

2000 8D 39

STATE of South Dakota, ex rel. Sandy STEFFEN, Plaintiff and Appellant, v. Jerry PETERSON, the Gregory County Register of Deeds, Defendant ard
Appelles.

Supreme Court of South Dakota.

Argued January 11, 2000.

Decided March 15, 2000.

Kttarazy(s) appeuricg for the Lase
Sendy J. Steffen, Gregory County State's Aftorney, Burke, South Dakota, Atterney for plaintiff and appellant.

Richard L. Travis and David A. Pfeifle of May, Johnson, Doyie and Becker, P.C., Sloux Falis, South Dakotz, Afforneys for defendant and appeliee.

MILLER, Chisf Justice

{91 1.1 County * appeals from the circuit court's holding that its register of deeds
{607 N.W.2d 265]

did not commit malfeasance or nonfeasance in the collection, remittance and accounting of fees so as to warrant removal. County also appeals from a
judgment against it for disbursements. By notice of review, the register of deeds appeals the trial court’s denial of additionat fees and costs. We affirm

htips:/fwww.leagle.com/decision/2000869607nw2d2621861 Page 1of @
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the u\:etainmént in office, but modify the full award of disbursements. Further, we affirm the denial of additional fees and costs.
FALTS

[ 2.] Jerry Peterson was elected Gregory County Register of Deeds in 1982, and took office in January 1983. He continues to hold such position, having
beern re-elected to that position in 1986, 1990, 1994 and 1998. As part of his statutorily prescribed duties, Peterson is responsible for collecting fees
charged for recording various docutnents. Each month, his office is required to transmit a statement to the coundy auditor showing the amount of fees
collected that month. He is also required to submit the fees he collects to the county treasurer on a monthly basis. At the time of the events precipitating
this action, both the fee statement and the fees were to be remitted to the sther county offices no later than the fifteenth day of the following month. 2

{1 3.1 In 1993 and 1995 the South Dakota Department of Legislative Audit, an agency charged with auditing state and local government entities,
conducted routine andits of County. In each audit, a random one-month sample was reviewed to ensure the fee statement and the fees were timely
remitted to the auditor and treasurer, respectively. Both audit samples revealed that although the fee staternent had been timely rernitted to the
auditor, the fees had not been timely remitted to the treasurer. Each time the legislative auditor made a comment to Peterson that he was to remit the
fees by the fifteenth day of the following month. However, neither legislative auditer submitted a formal written recommendation of such action to the
county board of commissioners {Board).

[0 4. Ir July 1997 County was due for another routine audit. In conjunction with that audit, and as the result of a reported shortfali of money and
allegations of theft against Peterson, a more thorough examination of the register of deeds' office was performed. During this audit, it was discovered
that Peterson had been late in remitting fees to the treasurer each month for the previous thirty months, In addition, it was discovered that Peterson
had been receiving 2 $15 payment from a credit reporting agency {CBC) nearly every month since 1961 for performing lien and judgment searches.
Rather than reporting this payment to the anditor and submitting it to the treasurer, Peterson had simply been depositing it into the register of deeds’
checking account. Finally, a "'potential shortage" of approximately $1,500 was noted by the legislative auditor.

[% 5.1 The Board met regarding the findings of this audit on August 5 and August 13, 1997. At the August 5th meeting, the Board asked Peterson to
explain why he had been late in remitting his fees. He stated the late remittances were due to accounts receivable. At the August 13th meeting, the Board
inguired about the shortage of funds and alleged that Peterson had taken it. The Board asked him te replace the money and resign. Peterson responded
that he would replace the money, but that he was not a thief and did not intend to resign. The Board also asked about Peterson's failure to report and
remit the CBC fees. He admitted that his handling of the CBC payments had been wrong. At a third meeting on an unspecified date, Peterson claims he
was asked again abont the shortfall and for his resignation. He did not try to provide an explanation

[607 N.W.2d 2661
for the shortfall because he was not sure the Board was "really looking for answers anyway." On August 20, 1997, Peterson deposited $1,500 of personal
funds into the register of deeds' checking account to "catch up.”

[ 6.] An even more thorough investigative audit of the register of deeds' office was conducted in September 1997, covering records from 1983 through
july 1997. This review revealed that in 140 of the previous 175 months, Peterson had been late in remitting fees to the treasurer. The delinquencies
ranged from one to one hundred days late. In addition, a total of $1,060 in CBC payments had been received by Peterson and deposited info the register
of deeds' checking account, but never recorded on the fee staternent nor submitted to the treasurer. Further, $198.60 3 of §216,308.60 was found to
have been recorded on the fee staternent, but never remitied to the treasurer, Other potential defalcations included uncollectable accounts receivable in
the amount of $406.90, + uncollectable non-sufficient fund (NSF) checks in the amount of $138.95, and miscellaneous expenses in the amount of
$76.73 bypassing the appropriate voucher system.

[$1 7.1 On Septernber 23, 1997, Peterson told the Board he was not going to resign. A removal proceeding ensued. Throughout the proceedings, Peterson
admitted that he had been late in remitting fees to the treasurer and that he had improperly handled the CBC funds. However, he adamantly denied
stealing any money from his office. Peterson attributed the perpetually iate remittances to an admitted shortage in the register of deeds' checking
account, which was in turn caused by the accounts receivable, uncollectable accounts, supplies purchased, check charges and "things like that." While
Peterson coriceded that, pursuant to statute, his office was to collect fees in advance and not allow people to charge, the Minnehaha County Register of
Deeds testified on his behaif that such was the common practice. It was also common practice to remit fees from the current month to pay for fees
which have been charged for the prior month and whici have not yet been paid, a process called "lapping." Peterson’s expert witness, a CPA, testified
that over a period of time, uncoliectable and late accounts receivable could create a Ypyramid" effect and cause a shortage in cash flow. Finally,
Peterson admitted that his handling of the CBC funds was a "mistake,” but that he had always deposited the payments into the register of deeds’
checking account and never used any of it for personal gain.

[ 8.] In addition to the other ailegations, County also asserted at trial that Peterson was improperly conducting political activities while on duty, as
evidenced by the fact that he asked two of his deputies to work on political flyers while on county time.

14 9.1 At the conclusion of its three-day bench trial, the court ruled that the CBC payments received were not “'fees" as defined by statute, that Peterson
did not intend to evagde the fifteen-day requirement for remitting funds to the treasurer, and that Peterson had not commitied malfeasance,
nonfeasance, theft or any other crimes in office so as to warrant removal. In a later hearing, the trfal court also awarded Peterson $25,677.12 in
expenses incurred in his defense.

{31 10.] On appeal, County raises two issues:
1. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in failing to remove Peterson for malfeasance or nonfeasance pursuant to SDCL 3-17-67

https:/fwww.leagie.com/decisionf/2000869607nw2d2621861 . Page2cf 8
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2. Did the trial court err in finding that the decision was "favorable" to Peterson,
{607 N.W.24 267]

and abuse its discretion in awarding him total disbarsements?
{4 11.] By notice of review, Peterson raises the following issue:

3. Whether the trial court erred in denying additional disbursements for attorney fees and expenses?
ISCUSSION

{4 12.] 1. The trial court did not abuse its discretion in failing to remove Peterson from office.
{91 13.] As to removal proceedings under SDCL 3~17- 6, this Court has stated:

It [has been asserted] that, under our statute, if any misconduct, malfeasance, or nonfeasance on the part of the officer charged is found as a fact,
then the court where the proceeding is pending has no option whatsoever but is absolutely compellable as a matter of law to enter judgment of
immediate ouster from office. With this contention we are unable to agree. The proceeding is at least quasi judicial in nature, and we are convinced
that the trial court has some discretion in the matter, and that it is for the trial judge to determine in the first instance, doubtless subject to review
in each particular case whether, under all the circumstances, the given misconduct, malfeasance, or nonfeasance found, if any is f{mnd_,’ is
sufficient to justify or require removal from office.

State ex rel. Hooper v. Tarr, 62 5.D. 305, 309, 252 N.W. 854, 856 (5.D.1934). Thus, the standard of review is under an abuse of discretion standard.
"Abuse of discretion’ is discretion not justified by, and clearly against, reason and evidence." Nelson v. Nelson Cattle Co, 513 N.W.2d 909, 906
(8.0.1994) (citing Dacy v. Gors, 470 NW.2d 576, 580 (5.0.1991)). "The test is whether a judicial mind, in view of the law and circumstances, could
reasonably have reached the {same] conclusion.” 7d.

[% 14.] The trial court found that although Peterson's failure to timely remit the fees "certainly is wrong,” it conciuded that his misconduct did not rise
to the level sufficient to warrant removal. However, the court did order Peterson to remit $1,060, (the amount of the unreported and unremitted CBC
fees), and $198.60, (the shortfall between fees reported and fees remitted), to the treasurer. These amounts were in addition to the $1,500 of personal
funds Peterson had previously deposited into the register of deeds’ checking account.

[¥ 15.] In this appeal, County argues that in Hght of all this evidence, the trial judge abused his discretion in not removing Peterson for malfeasance or
nonfeasance, It further argues that the trial court improperly delegated the decision of whether to oust Petersen to the voters In an upcoming primary
election in which Peterson was seeking re-election to his positien. We disagree.

{9 16.] SDCL 3-17-6 provides a mechanism for removing an elected official prior to the end of his or her term: "Any officer of any local unit of
gavernment may be charged, tried, and removed from office for misconduct, malfeasance, nonfeasance, crimes in office, drunkenness, gross
incompetency, corruption, theft, oppression, or gross partiality."

{9 17.] County asserts that Petersen committed malfeasance and/or nonfeasance because he failed to collect fees in advance pursuant to SDCL 7-9-1, 3
and because he
[6oy7 N.W.2d 268]

failed to report and remit fees pursuant to SDCL 7-9-17. ® According to County, such failure constitutes an unlawful act, theft, under SDCL 7-9-18. 7

(% 18.] In Tazr, this Court had the only other occasion to consider the removal provision of SDCL 3-17-6. However, the metits of the case were not
reached because the appeal was dismissed on other grounds. 8 Tarr, 62 8.1, at 310, 252 N'W. at 857. Thus, we must look elsewhere for guidance.

I1 19.] "Removal of public officers from office is a drastic remedy, ... and statutory provisions prescribing the grounds for removal are strictly
construed." Kemp v. Bavd, 166 W.Va. 471, 275.5.E.24 297, 301 (W.Va.1981}. See also, 4, Eugene McQuillin, Municipal Corporations, § 12.229 {3rdEd 1992}
("Strict construction of laws authorizing removal is the rule"). The remedy provided by removal statutes ts heroic in nature and relatively drastic
whete the usual method of remnoving officeholders is by resort to the ballot. State v. Bartz, 224 N.W.2d 632, 638 (lowa 1974 ) {citation omnitted). Evidence
in a removal action must be “clear, satisfactory and convincing." Id. See also, Remp, 275 $.E.2d at 301 {To warrant removal of an official, clear and
convincing evidence is necessary.}.

19 20.] "To constitute malfeasance or nonfeasance, conduct must “affect the performance of official duties and must relate to something of a
substantial nature directly affecting the rights and interests of the public.”" Claude v. Collins, 518 N.W.24 836, 842 (Minn.1994) {quoting Jacobsen

[607 N.W.2d 269]
v. Nagel, 255 Minn, 300, 96 NW.2d 560, 573 (Minn.1959) (citation omitted)). Malfeasance is “not susceptible of an exact definition but it "has reference
to evil conduct or an iilegal deed, the doing of that which ene ought not to do, the performance of an act by an officer in his gfficial capacity that is
whoily illegal and wrongful. ™" Id. ¢ Nonfeasance is the ""neglect or refusal, without sufficient excuse, to do that which is the officer's legal duty to do."”
Id 10

{1 21.] A yecurring factor in removal cases is the intent of the actor. In Bartz, county supervisors were removed because they accepted gifts from
contractors with whom they dealt in their official capacities, mairtained "slush" funds from sales of county equipment to purchase tocls and

https:ffwww.ieagle .com/decision/2000863507nw2d2621861 Page 361 8
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miscellansous supplies for the county shops, and submitted exorbitant unsubstantiated mileage relmbursement requests. Bartz, 224 N.W.2d at 634~37.
In Claude, stating that ignorance or inexperienice is not a sufficient excuse, the Minnesota Supreme Court removed three city council officers from
office for intentionally violating the requirements of an open meeting law on at Teast three separate occasions. Claude, 518 N'W.zd at 843, In contrast, in
Kemp, a county commissioner was riot remaoved from office, even though he left a county commission meeting for six hours to coach a basketball game
and bhad erronecusty received mileage reimbursement from the county. Kemp, 275 5.E.2d at 302-07. Instead of removal from office, the commissioner
was directed to repay the sums which he obtained under his erroneous interpretation of the law, and was admonished to place his duties as a public
official above his coaching obligations. Id A survey of these cases reveals that where the official's intent was to evade or otherwise circumnseribe the
law, malfeasance or nonfeasance was found. In contrast, where there was no such intent, no malfeasance or nonfeasance existed. In State v. Manning,
220 lowa 525, 250 N.W, 213, 215-16 (1935), the Iowa Supreme Court stated:

[Alcts, whether of omission or commission, in order to constitute grounds for removal must have been done knowingly, willfully and with an evil
of corrupt motive and purpose ... The primary purpose of the law ... is to protect the public interest.... While we cannot place our stamp of approval
upon the manner and method pursued by these defendants in the management of the affairs of the municipality, and are in no way excusing acts
and conduct which amount te actual vielation of statutory laws, yet we can discern no purpose, on the part of said officials in what they did, to
harm, or which was inimical to the interests of such city. No corrupt or evil design or purpose is manifest from the evidencel.}

Similarly, SDCL 7-9-18, supra, vequires an intent fo evade the provisions of SDCL 7-9-17 in order to constitute theft.

[4l 22.] Upon reviewing the record in the instant case, we cannot hold that the trial court abused its discretion in failing te remave Peterson from office.
While Peterson admittedly failed to comply with the strict letter of the law, he did not do so with a corrupt or evil design or purpose. Although he
charged fees rather than collecting them in advance, his was not the only register of deeds’ office in the state to do so. It was this practice of charging,
and ifs resulting "pyramiding" effect, that caused the shortage of funds for Petersont. The shortage of funds in tura resulted in the late remittance of
fees. Peterson also testified that his handling of the CBC funds was a "mistake," and that he simply

iSo7 N.W.2d 270]
began handling the payments improperly and continued to do so until the practice was discovered in 1997, Perhaps part of Peterson’s confusion about
how to handle the CBC payments stems from the fact that, as the trial coust found, the payments do not fit into any of the categories of “fees" described
at SDCL 7-9-15. 1 In addition, the $198.60 that Peterson reported but did not remil is small in comparison to the total amount of fees handled during
that fourteen-vyear period, $216,308.50.

[l 23.] As stated by the lowa Supreme Court in State ex rel, Crowder v. Smith, 232 Towa 254, 4 N.W.2d 267, 270 (1942): "{The defendant] may have made
some mistakes, or, at times, in the opinions of others, may have exercised poor judgment; but any officer may make mistakes and still be absolutely
honest. An officer may even be incompetent and still be honest and the sout of integrity." It further concluded, "There is no man in official position so
letter perfect in the law that he does not at some point by act or omission or misconstruction of the law, though with perfect integrity of motive, fall
short of the strict statutory measure of his official duty.” Id. 4 N.W.zd at 271

[ 24.]1 Additionally, we find the trial court did not abdicate its authority to remove an elected official. SDCL 3-17-7 provides in pertinent part that "it
shall be the auty of judge of the circuit court to ... hold 2 special term thereof, at which term the issues in such proceeding shall be heard and determined
by the court." County argues that the court "([threw] the removal decision over to the voters of Gregory County" when it made the following remark
(after stating that there was an adequate explanation for the late remittal of fees and that such explanation was sufficient to justify Peterson's non-
rernoval) in its bench ruling:

And T say that mindful of the fact that this is an election year and that there will be an election on June 2nd and that the people of Gregory County
can decide whether or not Mr. Peterson's practice warrants his removal. And if he survives the primary they can decide again in the fall. And if he
doesn't then the people will have spoken. And I believe it's for them to do that on that issue.

[ 25.] Peterson argues that such comment was only acknowledgerment by the court that its decision would be short-lived since there was an upcoming
election and
fae7 N.W.2d 271])

the voters could unseat Peterson if they saw fit. We agree.
[10 26.] Our treatment of extraneous material not incorporated into the trial court’s findings of fact and conclusions of law is well settled:

Any expression of opinion or views by the trial judge extraneous to his decision in the manner and form contemplated by lawis of ne binding force
or effect as a matter of law either upon the trial judge himself or any one else. Cf. Agard v. Menagh, 60 S.I. 262, 244 NW. 379; Klundt v.
Hemenway, 60 S.D. 248, 244 N.W. 377. Such expressions by the trial judge are, of course helpful and indeed almost necessary in advising counsel
as to the views of the court and for the information of counsel in drafting findings and conclusions for presentation to the court. But such
expression of opinion constitutes no proper part of the record on appeal, whether announced in the form of an oral statement in open court
transcribed by the reporter or in the form of a memorandum or letter addressed to counsel. [cites omitted).

Mellema v. Meliema, 407 N.W.2d 827, 829 (5.D.1987) {quoting Western Bldg. Co. v. J.C. Penrney Co., 60 $.D. 630, 636-637, 245 NW. 909, 911-912 {1932}).
“Thus, we ignore the trial court's oral proncuncements and limit our review to the written findings and conclusions." Id. (citing jones v. fones, 334
N.W.2d 492 (5.D.1983); Hitzel v. Clark, 334 N.W.2d 37 (S.12.1983)).

[4 27.} The comments made by the judge in his bench ruling were not incorporated into the findings of fact and conclusions of law, therefore they are
superfluous and not reviewable.
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[¥ 28.] 2. The trial court abused its discretion in awarding Peterson total disbursements, because the decision was not entirely "favorable” to him.

[% 29.] The trial court awarded attorney fees and disbursements in the amount of $25,677.12 to Peterson. The issue is whether the outcome was
ifavorable” to Peterson, thereby entitling him to disbursernents. County argues the decision was not favorable, because Peterson likely would not have
been able to retain his position had he not repaid over $2,700 from his personal funds. Peterson asserts, however, the outcome was favorable because
he was able to retain his position.

[ 30.) "A party filing 2 motion for an award of attorney's fees bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of evidence its entitiement to such an
award."" Hartman v. Wood, 436 NW.2d 854, 857 (S.D.1989) {citing Bd. of County Conmmi‘rs of County of Jefferson v. Auslaender, 745 P.2d 999, 1001
{Colo.1987)). Attorney fees are not recoverable by either party unless such action is specifically authorized by statute. Michlitsch, 1999 8D 69, § 17, 594
N.W.2d at 734; Hartman, 436 NW.2d at 857, Further, where an expenditure of public funds is involved, a statute authorizing such expenditure will be
strictly construed. Appeal of Presentation Sisters, Inc., 471 N.W.24 169, 174 (8.D.1991); Sioux Valley Hosp. Ass'n v. Davison County, 298 NW.2d 85
{5.13.1980) {statute authorizing payment of medical expenses for indigent person strictly construed). See also CADO Business Systems of Ohio, Inc. v.
Bd. of Educ. of Cleveland City School Dist., 8 Ghio App.3d 385, 457 N.E.2d 939, 944 (1983} {payment to equipraent vendor denied where directives of
statute authorizing expenditure were not strictly foltowed); Tracy v. Fresno County, 125 Cal App.2d 52, 270 P.2d 57, 63 (1954) {payment of attorney fees
to sheriff in defense of criminal prosecution denied because reimbursement statute only covered normal incidents of public office, not criminal
actions); and In re Naylor, 284 N.Y. 188, 30 N.E.2d 468, 469 {1940) (payment fo third medical examiner denied, where statute only authorized payment
to two such examiners).

[607 B 2d 272]
[ 31.] Specific statutory authorization for an award of attorney fees can be found at SDCL 3-27-10, which provides:

If the final determination of such proceeding be favorable to such accused officer, he shali be altowed the reasonable and necessary expenses he
: has incurred in his defense, including a reasonable attorney fee, to be fixed by the court or judge. Such expenses shall be paid by the county, if he
2 be acounty officer; by the township, if he be a township officer; and by the municipality if he be an officer of such municipality.

[ 32.] Other courts deciding whether an outcome was "favorable" or "successful," or whether a party "prevailed" so as be to entitied to an award of
attorney fees, have reached various cenclusions. In Maglio v. City of New York, 15 A.D.2d 197, 223 N.Y.S.2d 60 (N.Y.App.Div.ig61), aff'd, 12 N.¥.2d 939,
238 N.Y.S.2d 515, 188 N.E.2d 789 {1963), a New York appellate court held that where a magistrate judge was not removed from office, but was instead
only judicially censured, the magistrate could not be deemed a “successful party," so as to be reimbursed for attorney's fees. In denying the
magistrate's claim, the court stated:

The fact that [the magisirate] was spared the extreme penalty of removal does not detract from the gravity and effect of the finding by this court
that he was guilty of conduct inconsistent with the fair administration of justice. Only by means of a play on words can it be said that {the
magistrate] was successful.

Maglio, 223 N.Y.S.2d at 63.

{11 33.1 The dissenting opinion in Maglio, however, emphasized that the rernoval of the magistrate was the "aim and purpose of the proceeding," and
that the "aim and purpose failed.” id. at 64. "{The magistrate], therefore, was a ‘successful party' in a proceeding "to remove him from oifice."... Since
the proceeding here failed of its single intended purpese, to wit: [the magistrate's] removal, the conclusion unavoidably follows that he is the
“successful party' and is entitled to recover his expenses..." Id.

% 34.) In Heath v. County of Afken, 302 8.C. 178, 394 5.8.2d 709 {5.C.1990), the South Carolina Supreme Court upheld the award of attorney fees to a

sheriff who had brought a partially successful declaratory judgnrent action against the county, In this regard the court stated:

: Contrary to appellants’ assertion, a party need not be successful as to all issues in order to be found to be a prevailing party. 4 prevailing party has
© been defined as:

[t]he one who successfully prosecutes the action or successfully defends against it, prevailing on the main issue, even though not to the extent of
the original contention [and} is the one in whose favor the decision or verdict is rendered and judgment entered.

Heath, 394 $.E.2d at 711 (quoting Buza v. Columbia Lumber Co., 195 P.24d 511, 514 (Alaska 1964)).

[% 35.] Reimbursement of attorney fees by a state official who successfuily defended himself against a removal proceeding was also upheld by the
Supreme Court of New Hampshire. King v. Thomson, 119 NH. 219, 400 A.2d 1169 (1979). In King the court reasoned that the state manifested an equally
strong interest in maintaining a public official as it did in removing such a person, therefore by defending himself from removal, the official was
proftecting an important state interest, and the state was obligated to pay his counsel fees. Id at 1171

[ 36.] On a more general level, the United States Supreme Court has stated, "[A] Court first must determine if the applicant i a "prevailing party’ by
evaluating the degree of success obtained.” Commissioner, INSv. Jean, 496 1L5. 154, 160, 116 S.CL. 2316, 2320, 110 L.Ed.2¢ 134, 143 (1990).

F607 N.W.2d 273)
{1l 37.] Here, although Peterson was able to retain his position, he was not completely exonerated of alf wrongdoing, and through the removal
proceeding, County was stccessfud in bringing about restitution and a change in his behavior, Peterson admitted his failure to timely remit funds te the
trﬂasure‘f3 as well as the improper accounting of the CBC paymemq He agreed to rernit fees on a timely basis in the future and he agreed to properly
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{91 38.] Peterson's actions are not the type of conduct SDCL 3-17-10 rewards. Rather, the statute is intended to reimburse public officials who are
innocent of wrongdoing in office. We think the term "faverable” in SDCL 3-17-10 must be strictly construed to mean "exculpation and not some lesser
degree of success." Kerwick v. City of Trenten, 184 N.JSuper. 235, 445 A.2d 482, 484 (Law Div.1982). See generally, Kimberly J. Winbush, Annotation,
Payment of Attorneys’ Services in Defending Action Brought Against Officials Individually as Within Power or Obligationof Public Body, 47 4 L.R.5th
553 (1997).

[¥ 39.] The determination in this case was favorable to Peterson iny the sense that he managed 1o retain his position. However, it was unfavorable to him
because he was required to repay in excess of $2,700 in personal funds to the county, and he was admonished to change certain aspects of his office
procedure. In view of the circumstances of this case, we hold that an equal apportionment of Peterson's expenses is reasonable and appropriate, since
the determination was not totally favorable to either party. SDCL 3-17-10. Thus, the trial court abused its discretion in awarding full reimbursement of
disbuzrsements to Peterson. The case is remmanded to the trial court with directions that it modify its order to award Peterson 50% of his disbursements.

[§ 40.] 3. The trial court did not err in denying additional disbursements for attorney fees and expenses.

[H £1.] The trial court denied Peterson's request for additional attorney fees and expenses, writing, "[w]ith regard to the request for additional attorney
fees, I wili not award attorney fees for obtaining attorney fees." By notice of review, Peterson argues that SDCL 3-17-10 mandates the payment of
attorney fees and expenses, and the additional attorney fees and expenses were incurred only because County refused to acknowledge such directive.
Therefore he asserts he is entitled to reimbursement for these expenses, In contrast, County simply asserts SDCL 3-17-10 does not allow the award of
attorney fees for pursuing an award of attorney fees. We agree.

e

[T 42.] Actions for atterney fees incurred in obtaining attorney fees for an underlying action, se-called “fees-for-fees™ litigation, have been decided
along two lines. One line of reasoning holds fees-for-fees litigation as part of the underlying substantive issue that is being litigated. Under this
rationale, statutes such as SDCL 3-17-10 were enacted to make a vindicated defendant whole, therefore all related fees are authorized as part of the
underlying claim. See, e.g., Comymissioner, INS v. Jean, 4,96 U.8. 154, 110 8.Ct. 2316, 110 L.Ed.2d 134 (1990); Am. Fed'n of Gov't Employees, AFL-CIC Local
3882 v. Fed. Labor Relations Auth., 894 F.24 20

[607 N.W.2d 274)

because such litigation was pursued as part of the larger effort to vindicate him and make him whole.

[¥ £3.] The other line of reasoning follows the traditicnal American rule that attorney fees cannot be recovered by a prevailing party absent express
statutory or contractual authorization. This rationale characterizes fees-for-fees litigation as an issue separate and distinct from the underlying action.
Because such fees would onty benefit the individual litigant and are not sought in furtherance of the underlying claim or for the benefit of the public in
general, they would be barred under statutes such as SDCL 3-17-10, which only provide for expenses incurred in defense of the substantive issue. Ses,
e.g., Barker v, Utah Pub. Serv. Comim’n, 970 P.2d 702, 713 (Utah 1998), Salmon, 916 P.2d at 896 -960 (Russon, [, dissenting); Thornber v. Cify of Fort
Walton Beach, 622 50.2¢ 570 (Fla.Dist.Ct.App.1993); and Van Horn v. City of Trenton, 80 NI 528, £04 A2d 615 (N.J.1g79). Under this approach,
Peterson's fees~for-fees would not be anthorized by SDCL 3-17-10, because such litigation was not pursued in defense of the removal proceeding and
because such an award is not specifically authorized by statute or contract.

[ 44.] Although both arguments are somewhat persuasive, we hereby adopt the latter line of reasoning and hold that Peterson is not entitled to fees-
for-fees. He was not comptletely vindicated as a result of the removal proceeding, and SDCL 3-17-10 does not specifically provide for the payment of
fees-for-fees,

{9 45.] We affirm in part, reverse and remand in part, and award no appellate attorney fees.

I 46.] AMUNDSON and GILBERTSON, Justices, concur.

£ 47.1 SABERS and KONENKAMP, Justices, concur in part and concur in result in part.

KONENKAMP, Justice (concurring in part and concurring in result in part).

{7 48.] I concur in the majority opinion on Issues 1and 2, and on Issue 3, 1 join with Justice Sabers on points 1 and 2 of his special writing,
SABERS, Justice (concurring in part and concurring in result in part}.

{91 49.11 concur in all respects except that I concur in result on Issue 3 for four reasons:

1. First, since we are affirming the trial court in denying additional disbursements {for attorney fees and expenses}, it is not necessary to decide at this
time whether or not they are permitted undey the statute,

2. Second, since we decide to deny additional disbursements because the result was not entirely favorable to Petersen, any integpretation of the statute
{SDCL 3-17-10) is not necessary to the holding, and therefore, simply dicta.

3. Third, it is a mistake to reach that unnecessary interpretation now for an even more important reason. it is wrong.

SDCL 3-17-10 is specific statutory autherization for an award of trial and appellate attorney fees. It provides in part: "I the finaldetermination of such
proceeding be favorable to such accused officer. he shall be allowed the reasonabie and necessarv expenses he has incurred in his defense. including a
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reasonable attorney fee, to be fixed by the ceﬁrt ot judgel.}" (emphasis added). Cbviously, thé fi,;ral defermination is at the appe!latetievei in tuhe
Supreme Court, not the trial court,

4. Fourth, it would be a mistake to have an incorrect, unnecessary interpretation on the books in this state because it

[6o7 N.w.2d 275]
would enable the County Cormmissioners to punish a county officer in circumstances like this, even though the initial determination, or trial court
result, was entirely favorable to him. They could do this by forcing him to pay the cost and expenses of an appeal without personal costs to themselves.
We should not provide them this one~sided advantage, especially when the Legislature intended otherwise.

{9 50.] KONENKAMP, Justice, joins this special writing ont points 1and 2.

FootHales

1. We note this case is titled, "State ex rel. Steffen v. Peterson.” The Gregory County State's Attorney, Sandy Steffen, brings this suit on behaif of the
Gregory County Board of Commissioners, so the Board should have been named as a party rather than Steffen. Steffen indicated the titling of the case
was patterned after a previous removal proceeding, State exrel Hooperv. Tarr, 62 S.I. 305, 252 N.W. 854 (5.D.1934). However in Hooper, the state's
attorney was in fact the party bringing the suit, not the Board or any other county entity.

2. The legislature changed this requirement in 199¢. See footnote 6, infra
3. This amount was originally alleged to be $285.60, but through cross-ezamination at trial, the amount was reduced to $198.60.
4. This amount was originally claimed to be $515.90, but was reduced to $406.90 through cross-examination at trial,

5 Prior to being amended in 1999, SDCL 7-9-1 provided in part;

The register of deeds shall keep full and true records in proper books, of all deeds, mortgages, and other instruments auvtherized by law to be
recorded in the register of deeds' office, and records of all chattel mortgages, bills of sale, conditional sale contracts, and other instruments
authorized by law to be filed in the register of deeds' office, if the person offering any of such instruments pays in advance the fee required by law
for recording or filing the same.

The 1999 amendment deleted the in advance phrase.

6 Prior to being amended in 1999, SDCL 7-9-17 provided in pertinent part; )

The register of deeds shall, within fifteen days after the expiration of each calendar month and also at the end of his term of office, file with the
county auditor a statement under cath showing the fees ... which he has charged or received as such officer since the date of his last report or the
beginning of his term of office and shall, alse within such fifteen days, deposit with the county treasurer the total amount of such fees which sum
so deposited shall be placed to the credit of the general fund.

SDCL 7-9-17 was completely re-written in 1999 and now provides:

Within the time frame established by the county commission, the register of deeds shall deposit with the county treasurer the total amount of fees
and other collections received. Unless otherwise required, all fees and other collections shall be placed to the credit of the general fund. At the
discretion of the register of deeds, fees and other transactions may be charged on account but shall be collected by the end of the following month.
The register of deeds shail maintain a detailed record of any accounts receivable.

7.8DCL 7-9-18 states;

" Any register of deeds who shall neglect or omit to charge or collect the fees aliowed by law for services rendered by him, oz shall fail to keep a
record of the same, or to make a correct statement thereof to the county auditor, or to pay over such fees to the county treasurer as provided in §
7-9-17, with intent to evade the provisions of said section, shall be guilty of theft.

8. In Tarr, removal praceedings were initiated against Tary, a Gregory County Commissioner, by the Gregory County State's Attomney. The proceedings
were dismissed a short time later by stipulation between the parties. However, an acting commissioner subsequently alleged that the stipulated
dismissal was entered into with ulterier motives. According to the acting commissioner, Tarr and the State's Attorney were both in favar of building a
new county courthouse, therefore the State’s Attorney dismissed the action against Tarr so that be could be reinstated and vote for its construction.
Upon learning of these allegations, the trial court entered an oxder reinstating the action against Tarr and replacing the State’s Attorney with a Special
State’s Attorney. The court then conducted removal proceedings and found that, although Tarr was guilty of misconduct and nonfeasance, his actions
wete not 5o egregious as to warrant removal from office. The Special State's Attorney appealed the decision, and this Court held the trial court did net
have any authority to summarily remove the State's Attorney from his office and appeint a Special State’s Attomey. Thus, all acts of the Special State's
Attorney were void and of no effect, and the Court dismissed the appeal.

9 Bl&ck s Law chnona"y dtfmes malfeasance as: "A wrongful or unlawful act; esp., wrongdoing or miscoriduct by a public official ¥ Black's Law
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DICTIOnAryY, OB {7inka, 1993 ).
10. Black's Law Dictionary defines nonfeasance as: "The fatlure to act when a duty to act existed.” Black's Law Dictionary, 1076 (7thEd. 1999}

11 SDCL 7-9-15 states:
| The register of deeds shall charge and receive the following fees:

(1} For recording deeds, mortgages, and all other instruments not specifically provided for in this section or this code, the sum of ten doltars for the
first page and two doliars for each additional page or fraction thereof. Each rider or addendum shall be considered as an additional page;

{2) For a certified copy of any instrument of record, including certificate and official seal, two dollars plus twenty cents for each page after five pages,
and for an uncertified copy, one doliar, plus twenty cents for each page after five pages. The board of county commissioners by resolution shall
establish the fees charged for duplicate microfilm. In addition to the fee for 2 certified copy of the record of any birth, there is an additional charge of
two doliars for each copy requested, which shali be submitted on a monthly basis to the state treasurer to be deposited in the children's trust fund;

(3) For filing and indexing a bill of sale, seed grain lien, or thresher's lien, the sum of ten dallars. No fee may be charged for filing any satisfaction or
termination of any instrument as prescribed in this subdivision;

(4) For recording oil, gas, and mineral leases, and other recorded documents relating to mineral or cil and gas lease expleration and development, six
dollars per page; and

(5) Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (2) of this section, the board of county commissioners shatl fix by resolution the fees to be paid by
licensed abstracters of the county or by any person who has passed the written examination established by the Abstracters’ Board of Examiners
pursuant to § 36-13-11 for uncertified copies of recorded instruments, which fee may not exceed the actual cost to the county for providing such copies.

. The register of deeds may not charge a fee for discharging or canceling any personal property lien.

12. It is noteworthy, however, that the trial coust did not specifically order Peterson to repay this money as a condition of retaining his position, It
stated in its Jetter opinion awarding disbursements:

Steffen points out that several allegations in the pleadings were proven to be true. For example, Peterson was late with his payments and he had to
remit $1060 for CBC fees and $198.60 that he was short on his fees. This is not an indication that the state won. Peterson would be obligated to pay
these sums whether the court ordered it or not.
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